Garment
Protests

Haig Quiz
Prosecutors
Link Tape Gap
To Nixon Stand

By George Lardner Jr.
Washin;ton Post Staff Writer

Watergate prosecutors
suggested yesterday that
there was a direct link be-
tween a series of White
House mishaps with the
Watergate tapes and Presi-
dent Nixon’s subsequent at-
tempts to withhold the re-
cordings from the courts.

Assistant Watergate Special
Prosecutor Richard Ben-Ven-
iste voiced the suspicions late
yesterday afternoon in cross-
examining White House chief
of staff Alexander M. Haig Jr.

White House lawyers quickly
objected to the line of ques-
tioning. Acting White House
counsel Leonard Garment pro-
tested what he called the ap-
parent innuendoes about Mr.
Nixon’s short-lived proposal in
mid-October to produce only a
summary of his subpoenaed
Watergate conversations.

Ben-Veniste pointed out that |

Mr. Nixon and top White
House officials already knew
—when the compromise was
broached—that two of the sub-
poenaed discussions could not
be found.

They were also aware, Ben-

Veniste told U.S. District
Judge John J, Sirica, that the
President’s personal secretary,

Rose Mary Woods, had appar-
ently wiped out five minutes

of conversation on another
tape.
The White House has con-

tended that it was not aware

until mid-November ‘that the

erased recording was also cov-

cered by the Watergate grand

[ jury’s subpoena. White House

lawyers said they discovered
at the same time that a total
of 18Y% minutes had actually
fbecome obliterated.

The long erasure has yet to

be explained. It wiped out a
discussion of the Watergate
scandal between Mr. Nixon
and then White House chief of
staff H. R. Haldeman on June
20, 1972, just three days after
discovery of the break-in and
bugging of Democratic Na-
tional headquarters here.
Judge Sirica called a halt to
yesterday’s lengthy . hearing
when questioning turned to
the President’s proposed out-
of-court “compromise.” The
judge told Ben-Veniste to try
again in the morning in light
of the White House protests

was irrelevant.

.|whirlwind day of testimony
that included a command per-
formance by Miss Woods.

Put back on. the witness
‘|stand late yesterday morning
at Judge Sirica’s direction, she
flatly contradicted earlier tes-
timony by two White House
lawyers about a Nov. 14 meet-
-|ing they had regarding the
18%-minute erasure.

Mr. Nixon’s courtroom advo-
‘|cate, Samuel J. Powers of Mi-
ami, had just told the court
that he and White House spe-
cial counsel J. Fred Buzhardt
had just discovered the long
gap on the evening of Nov. 14
while they were monitoring
the suspect recording in a
‘White House office.

Powers said Miss Woods—
who has-contended that she
could have erased only five
minutes at most—came into
the room shortly afterwards.

“She was shocked about it,”

See TAPES, A9, Col. 1

T T R = we — .

w o

w

W

‘TAPES, From A1

- Powers testified. “She couldn’t
‘understand how it happened.”
‘He said she then left, brought
back her Uher recording ma-
chine and demonstrated how
she mistakenly pressed the
wrong button while reviewing
the tape for Mr. Nixon last
Oct. 1—during a five-minute
“phone call.

In testimony last week, Buz-
‘hardt “'dlso said that Miss
. Woods brought the machine to
“the two lawyers for a quick
demonstration.

" Miss Woods denied it yester-
day. )

“I was in there (with the
lawyers) only two or three
minutes,” she said. “I did not
:even sit down . . . I cannot re-
“member bringing a tape re-

that the new line of inquiry}

The exchange concluded a

|
|

corder into that room at any
time .
some sort” that showed the 18-
minute gap, she said.

- Subsequently told Haig to
get her own lawyer, Miss
Woods also testified that she
jthought White House attor-
ineys had been representing
her untid as recently as
Thanksgiving. She said she
particularly recalled a meet-
ing with Buzhardt, Powers and
Garment early on Nov. 8 be-
fore she went into court and
told Judge Sirica that she took
every “possible precaution”
with the Watergate tapes she
had summarized for the Presi-
dent. .

Buzhardt has said he did not
give Miss Woods any advice
and only poked his head in

to testify only about subpoe-
naed recordings and docu-
ments at the Nov. 8 appear-
ance. She had been told by
Haig and Mr. Nixon in early
fall that the subpoena did
not cover the June 20 Nixon-
Haldeman conversation.
Judge Sirica urged Miss
Woods before she left the
witness stand to search her
mind for any relevant in-
formation she could think of.
“Theonly thing the court
is concerned about,” the
judge told her, “is we want
to find out the truth—what
caused this 18-minute and
15-second gap. Was it by
accident? Was it by some ac-
tion by somebody . . .to cover
up something if that is the
expression, to prevent jus-

- . All they told me was|
that there was a meter of!

tice from being done?

that she remain available for
a final appearance if neces-
sary. “The first thing you
know, T’ll be on trial,” Sirica
quipped.

Miss Woods stepped down
from the witness stand after
assuring the court that she had
no knowledge of any tamper-
ing or intentional obliteration
of any of Mr. Nixon’s secret
tapes. .

Haig testified next, declar-

ing that the President was “in-|
credulous” on being told Nov.
15 that the erased Watergate
tape had been subpoenaed af-
ter all.

The White House chief of
staff said he told the Presi-
dent that Buzhardt had chang-
ed his mind the night before
land concluded that the con-

[briefly during the meeting.
Miss Woods, however, testitied

that “Mr. Buzhardt was in the
room most of the time.”

“They told me not to vol-
unteer  anything,” Miss
Woods said. “That I should
answer the questions ‘yes’ or
‘no’ and just don’t get into a
lot of discussion on any-
thing.”

Miss Woods’ newly hired
lawyer, Charles S. Rhyne, al-
luding to the Nifon-Halde-
man tape of June 20, then
asked her whether she had
been advised in any way
“not to discuss non-subpoe-
naed matter.”

“I don’t believe that came
up, Miss Woods replied. She
said she already was under
the impression that she was

“It doesn’t matter who it
hurts,” Sirica told her. “I'm
not saying I don’t believe
you. I haven’t made up my
mind one way or another.”
But he added, “this is the
greatest forum " you’ll ever
have any opportunity to speak
at. This is the time to do it.
This is not a frial.”

Miss Woods responded by
saying she felt she was being
tried “by the jury of news-
paper, radio and media peo-
ple. She reminded Sirica of]
news stories this week report-
ing that the judge was dissat-
isfied with her testimony.

“Im telling you I did not
make that statement,” Sirica
told her. But he indicated he
indicated that he had suggest-
ed te White House lawyers

troversial recording would
have to be surrenderéed to the
courts.

“The President was very,
very disturbed when I told
him this,” Haig reported. “He
was almost ineredulous that
such a mistake could Hhave
been made.”

Haig’s testimony appeared
to conflict with earlier White
House claims that Mr. -Nixon
remained doubtful about the
tape being required by the




Watergate grand jury sub-
poena -until the following
week when the 18%-minute
blank was finally reported to
Judge Sirica.

In between Haig’s initial re-
ports to the President on Nov.
15 and the disclosure to the
judge six days later, the Pres-
ident assured Republican gov-
ernors in Memphis that they
need not worry about any
more bombshells in the Wa-
tergate case.



